MARK J. BENNETT 2672
Attorney General

State of Hawaii

JUzIN €. WONU 2004
MARGARET A. LEONG 5737
Deputy Attorneys General

Department of the Attorney
General, State of Hawaii

Kekuanao’a Building, Room B-2

465 South King Street

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Telephone: (808) 587-3080

Facsimile: (808) 587-2938

E-mail: John.C.Wong@Hawaii.gov

Margaret.A.Leong.gov

Attorneys for Defendants

po g S

E‘gmgz w

o S

A QmJx )

3 omiy O

= i

w E=

3 ;&'E -
] wan
a =y

COPY

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWALII

RODELLE SMITH, SHEILA TOBIAS,
BARBARA BARAWIS, and LEWIS

GLASER individually, and on behalf of all

persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,

VS.

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION OF

HAWAIL, a duly organized and recognized

agency of the State of Hawai'i;

Defendants.
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DEFENDANT’S REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT
OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND IN
OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S CROSS-MOTION FOR

SUMMARY JUDGMENT FILED ON SEPTEMBER 23, 2065
L INTRODUCTION

In their opposition Memorandum', Plaintiffs have failed to establish any genuine issues
of material fact, or to rebut the clear principles of law that entitle HCDCH to summary judgment
as a matter of law. As to their First Claim for Relief, Section 21 of the ACC itself clearly
prohibits lawsuits such as this one against HUD or any housing authority, for alleged breaches of
its provisions. Even if Plaintiffs might be considered third-party beneficiaries of the ACC, they
are only incidental beneficiaries at best, and the law is abundantly clear that an incidental
beneficiary acquires “no right against the promisor or the promisee”. Restatement (Second) of
Contracts § 315 (1981), at 477.

As to their Second Claim for Relief, Plaintiffs likewise have failed to overcome the

overwhelmingly fact that they were provided utility allowances in accordance with the express

provisions of the Rental Agreement itself. Under fundamental principles of contract law, the
express language of the Rental Agreement prevails, even if the result might arguably be
unintended. Moreover, the Amended Complaint, filed August 10, 2004, itself is totally devoid of
any allegation that Rental Agreements, i.e. the “contracts”, were even executed between
Plaintiffs and HCDCH. This is not a mere formality of pleading and it would be wholly
improper for the Court to assume or imply that such privity existed at the time the Amended

Complaint was filed.

' Plaintiffs filed their opposition Memorandum on September 23, 2005. It was postmarked to us on September 26
and received in our office on September 27, 2005.
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The arguments that follow justify the granting of HCDCH’s Motion.

II. ARGUMENTS

A. The ACC Clearly Prohibits No Right of Enforcement or Cause of Action
 Against HCDCH

Section 21 of the ACC is clear and undisputable: no third-party rights for its enforcement

or for private causes of action against HUD or any Housing Authority for the breach of any of its
provisions, are allowed. Plaintiffs reliance on Ashton v. Pierce, 716 F.2d 56 (D.C.Cir. 1983) as
controlling authority is misplaced. Ashton involved a class action challenge by public housing
residents specifically as to HUD's enforcement of the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention
Act (“LBPPPA™) § 302, 42 US.C. §4822. The Court’s discussion of the ACC was only
ancillary to the broader finding that Congress clearly intended HUD to implement and enforce
the provisions of the LBPPPA. Id., ar 66.

The same District of Columbia Court in Samuels v. District of Columbia, 770 F. 2d 184,

201, fn 14, questioned its previous ruling in Ashton with respect to whether the ACC allowed for

private rights of action by residents brought under 42 U.S.C. §1983 for alleged violations of the

Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §1437, et seq.:

“We therefore do not decide whether the plaintiffs could obtain relief as third-
party beneficiaries of the District’s annual contributions contract with HUD under
which the District generally promises to obey the Act and relevant HUD
regulations. ..

In Ashton v. Pierce, 716 F. 2d 56 (D.C. Cir.), amended 720 F.2d 70 (D.C. Cir.
1983), this court concluded that tenants could require HUD to monitor PHA
compliance with certain lead-based paint elimination standards under a similar
third-party beneficiary theory. We did so however, only in light light of
Congress’ clear intent to require such enforcement. (Citation omitted). ..
We do not believe, for example, that an individual ublic housing tenant co
bring a section 1983 action for a public landlord’s random and unauthorized
failure to maintain properly her dwelling unit on ¢ theo t such action
violates the provision of the Act which calls for ‘decent, safe and sani
dwellings. 42 U.S.C. §1437. .. Nothing in the language or history of the Act
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indicates that Congress intended the broad policy provisions of the Act to create a
federal remedy for every aspect of public landlord-tenant relations. ..

To the extent that the plaintiffs’ third-party beneficiary theory could be extended
to establish a federal cause of action for such discrete and random disputes, we

think it would be plainly inconsistent with the structure of federal housing law.™

(Emphasis added)

Accord., Simmons v. Charleston Housing Authority, 881 F. Supp.225 (S.D.W.Va. 1995)
It is clear, then, that Ashton provides no comfort for Plaintiffs to assert a “third-party
beneficiary” theory under the ACC, for that same D.C. Court modified its ruling in Samuels by
clearly indicating that the provisions of the ACC would generally bar private actions for breaches
of its provisions.

In the present case, Section 21 of the ACC between HCDCH and HUD is virtually
identical to the ACC provision in Velez v, Cisneros, 850 F.Supp. 1257, 1276-1277 (E.D.Pa.

1994), where the Court held that the language explicitly prohibited tenants from enforcing the

ACC as third-party beneficiaries:
“However, subsection 51 ((B) states, ‘Nothing in this Contract contained shall be
constru creating or justifying any claim against the Government by any third

ther than (certain bondholders and the local h using authority)’. ..
This court disagrees with Ashton s conclusion that section 510 of the ACC lacks
clarity; it clearly expresses the parties’ intent to limit third party actions against
HUD... The contract’s broad, precatory language expressing an intent to benefit
plaintiffs in sections 101, 201 and 209 is insufficient to allow plaintiffs to sue as
third party beneficiaries under the ACC. Plaintiffs may not recover against HUD,
CHA (Chester Housing Authority), or CHA/HUD as third party beneficiaries of
the ACC.”

(Emphasis added)

Finally, the language of Section 21 in HCDCH’s ACC with HUD is indeed identical to

the language of the ACC in Aristii v, Housing Authority of the City of T: ampa, Florida, 54 Supp.

2d 1289, 1296 (M.D.Fla. 1999):

“Section twenty-one(21) of the ACC explicitly states that ‘(¢)xcept as to

bondholders. . -nothing in this ACC shall be construed as creating any right of any
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third party to enforce any provision of the ACC or to assert amy claim against
HUD or the (Housing Authority).” (Dkt. 12, exhibit A). Therefore, after
considering the legislative history and the language of the LPPPA, the USHA, and
the ACC, the Court finds that Plainti ff » In this instance, were not intended
beneficiaries of the ACC entered between the Housing Authority and HUD. The

ACC expressiyprovides that o rigius are cfeated in any person as a third party
beneficiary.” (Emphasis added.)

B. A Third-Party Beneficiary Theory Does Not Save Plaintiffs Flirst Claim

Based on the foregoing argument and the case authorities cited, the Court is compelled to
effectuate the explicit language of Section 21 of the ACC and dismiss Plainti fs First Claim for
Relief. Nothing could be clearer; Section 21 has been held to specifically bar this very type of
lawsuit against housing authorities. HCDCH concedes nothing and asserts that the Court should
not even get to the question of whether the Plaintiffs are third-party beneficiaries, given the plain
language of Section 21. Plaintiffs cannot be considered intended beneficiaries based on the
plain language of Section 21. Under Hawaii law, a party suing as a third-party beneficiary must
clearly show that the “contract” was directl y intended for his benefit:

“For one to be able to avail himself of a promise in an agreement to which he is

not a party, he must, at least, show that it was intended for his direct
benefit...(O)ne suing as a third party beneficiary has the burden of showing that

the provision was for his direct benefit. United States v. Maryland Casualty Co.,

323 F.3d 473 (5" Cir. 1963).”

Island Insurance Company, Ltd. V. Hawaiian Foliage & Landscape, Inc., 67 F.Supp. 2d 1 183,
1186-1187 (D.Haw. 1999)

Clearly, Plaintiffs cannot be considered intended beneficiaries of the ACC when the
express language of Section 21 obviates this. If at all, they might be considered incidental

beneficiaries. In Eastman v. McGowan, 86 Haw. 21, 28 (1997), the Hawaii Supreme Court

stated:

“An incidental beneficiary is defined in 4 Corbin, Corbin on Contracts §779C
(1951) as *a person who will be benefited by the performance of a contract in
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which he is not a promise, but whose relation to the contracting party is such that
the courts will not recognize any legal right in him." Id. Ar 40 (footnote omitted).
Additionally, Restatement (Second) of Contracts §315 (1951) states that “(a)n
incidental beneficiary acquires by virtue of the promise no right against the
promisor or the promise.’/d at 477."

—

But, as incidentél -beneﬁciaries to the ACC, this gets them nowhere. It is black-letter law that
they acquire no rights and ipso facto, no cause of against HCDCH to enforce any of the
provisions of the ACC,

It is clear and indisputable, therefore, that Plaintiffs have raised no genuine issue of fact
as to their First Claim for Relief. The case authorities and law are compelling, and clearly entitle
HCDCH to summary judgment as to their claim.

. There Are No Allegations in the Amended Complaint That
Plaintiffs Even Executed Rental A reements With HCD

HCDCH disagrees completely with Plaintiffs statement that “Defendants do not appear to
dispute that an express contract between Plaintiff and Defendant exists...”, Plaintiffs
Memorandum in Opposition, at p. 9. There is nothing in the Amended Complaint that states any
semblance of fact that Plaintiffs even executed Rental Agreements with HCDCH. The Amended
Complaint appears to assume such a fact, but HCDCH submits that it would be wholly improper
for purposes of the present Motion for this Court to also assume such a fundamental
Jurisdictional “fact™. It is axiomatic that a party is suing for breach of contract must allege that a
contract existed, and not just refer to the provision which was allegedly breached.

The rules of civil procedure require at minimum that such a fundamental foundational
fact, such as the existence of a contract, be plead. Rule 8(a), H.R.Civ.P: Au v. Au, 63 Haw. 210

(1981); In re Genesys Data Technologies, Inc., 95 Haw. 33 (2001). “ Hawaii’s rules of notice

pleading require that a complaint set forth a short and plain statement of the claim that provides
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